

November 4

#####

It was noted that more Issei, who had been doubting the claims of the recent days Japanese¹ hitherto, have begun to express a greater faith in the Japanese stories and a more doubt in the American claims. Different factors^x for this change, however, are attributed by them.

K of the Poston Chronicle (a former vernacular reporter on the Pacific Coast and a graduate of a Japanese college) had this to say:

"I didn't believe the Japanese claims off Formosa. I thought their claims were fantastic. Japan^{had} claimed that the American fleet had been wiped out at the time^{when} the battle for Saipan was at its height. Then what happened. Saipan was taken by the United States. So I thought the Japanese claims off Formosa were another Saipan story. But today I read in a newspaper that Admiral Marc Mitscher is back in the United States. What is he doing in the United States if the 58th Task Force won the battle off Formosa as the American Navy had claimed? This time, the Japanese claims are right, I believe. It seems to me that the 58th Task Force[✓] had been completely shattered."

An Issei, about fifty years of age, moderately well-to-do, an urban evacuee, said this:

"I was refusing to believe either story. I said to myself that things would become clear two or three months from now. I am convinced that But now¹ Japan was not lying this time. I heard a couple days ago

NOVEMBER 4 -- (3)

that new Japanese troops landed at Peleliu. It is a convincing evidence that Japan has the control of the air at the Palau; if she had not, her troops could not have landed there. It means that Japan won the naval battles off Formosa and the Philippines. If she lost in those engagements, she would not have the control of the air at the Palau.

Another Issei, a former independent farmer in Orange County, had this to say:

"Newspapers had news of American victories splattered all over the pages for many days. So I doubted the broadcast stories from Japan. I couldn't help it. But the papers today said that Japanese bombers went over Saipan and Tinian and damaged American warships. Well, that is a clue to the whole situation. Japan is on the offensive now because she won the naval battles as she *has* claimed."

OCTOBER 30 -- (1)

The majority of the older people here had another cause to be jubilant, because a story went around that Radio Tokyo had reported that American naval losses in the past ten days amounted to three hundred and five naval crafts (including landing boats). The same source also reported that Japan destroyed 1,500 American planes during the same period.

War News
Re
These people, in addition, received an information that Radio Tokyo on October 29 reported the following American losses at Leyte:

Sunk: Aircraft carriers 4; Cruisers 2, Unidentified warships 3; Landing Boats 4.

The handling of these Japanese claims by the vernacular newspapers (The ^CRokyo Shimpō; The Utah Nippo; and The Colorado Times) gives impressions to the reader that they are reliable. These papers for the past several issues have treated the Japanese claims brazenly. (See the papers in the files.) By adroit and clever use of Japanese words, the papers have succeeded (no doubt, this is intentional on the part of the editors.) in giving the reader cause to believe in the Japanese reports. As a result, the people here have increased the degree of confidence in these claims, and have begun to believe them without reservation.

OCTOBER 27 -- (1)

The following news credited to Radio Tokyo are widely circulated among the "Japanesey" evacuees today: (I might not have remembered correctly.)

The American losses off Formosa for the period, October 24-25th, are as follows:

War News Report

October 24th	Sunk	Damaged
Aircraft carriers	2	1
Cruisers	2	
October 25th		
Aircraft Carriers	6	7
Cruisers	3	2
Destroyers	1	2
Transports	4	

The American losses off the Philippines:

For the period, October 24th - 26th

Aircraft Carriers	3	1
Cruisers	1	4

The American losses off Leyte for the period, October 24th - 26th:

	Sunk	Damaged	Afire	Aground
Transports	5	2	3	4
Aircraft Carriers	2			
Battleships	1		2	2
Cruisers	2	3		
Destroyers	1	2		
Landing Boats	17	2	12	

These people seem to believe ~~in~~ these news. They passed the information from one to another and were very jubilant. One of them, whom I overheard, expressed that the war might end within a few months in Japanese victory. Another stated that the Japanese Navy was all mighty and could not be defeated.

One Kibei, about thirty-five years old, stated as follows:

"Japan had to give up the Marshalls and Saipan. We said at that time that Japan was drawing the American fleet nearer to ^a place of her own choice to crash them with one blow. Now the time has arrived, and Japan is living up to her predictions."

OCTOBER 28 -- (2)

The evacuees (except the young Nisei) are generally absorbed in these news of "Japanese victories". Their reactions are not varied; they believed the victory news unconditionally, and are extolling the might of the Japanese Navy. In the past few days, a greater faith in the Japanese claims is noticed among these people; the contradictory American claims seem to have very little effect with them. None of them seem to question the argument by many of them that the American claims are for the purpose of getting votes for President Roosevelt and did not have any veracity.

As true at other times when people are keenly interested in oversea broadcasts, rumors of arrests by the FBI for reason of possessing short-wave sets are spreading in camp in various forms. The following rumors are the most representative ones:

1. The FBI agents have picked up three short-wave radio sets in Camp III.
2. A man was arrested by the FBI in Camp III for possessing a short-wave radio set.
3. A man (another version said three men) was arrested by the FBI in Camp II for possessing a short-wave set (or sets).
4. Matsubara of the Executive Board (Unit I) was arrested by the FBI for passing oversea broadcast information.

Celebration parties are being held in many blocks, but now a little more quietly.

OCTOBER 26 -- (1)

War News
Reports
2 a

A group of Issei of various backgrounds (some were intelligent farmers, some others were fishermen from Terminal Island, and still some others were former merchants in Little Tokyo) was discussing the news flashed over the radio this evening reporting an American naval victory off the Philippines. They were in accord with an opinion that the news must be taken with a ^{grain} ~~edit~~ of salt, because this, to them, was a scheme of the Roosevelt administration to pep up the country to back him in the forthcoming election. The discussion could be summarized as follows:

"The news coming from the United States and Japan are diametrically contradictory. One country is claiming a complete victory, while the other is also claiming the same. Both country can't not be true. In the United States the presidential election is only ten days off. It seems that America rushed this Philippines invasion to time with the election. It is evident that the United States has not succeeded with the Palau invasion. The American claims during the peak of the Palau campaigns were exaggerated. If she was successful as she claimed, she should have the whole islands by this time. As in the case of the Palau invasions, America cannot afford to admit any loss right now in regard to this new venture. If she did, the present administration will lose the election. She must hide everything adverse. Japan, on the other hand, has no cause to hide ^{a certain amount of losses} or to exaggerate her victories right now. The American forces are now within the range of Japanese land-based planes. Besides, Japan had been prepared to challenge America at the Philippines. The Japanese claims seem to have more credulity."

An Issei (a bachelor, formerly owner of a fruit stand in

OCTOBER 26 -- (2)

Los Angeles) had reacted thus:

"It is the same old story. The United States claims are not reliable. They are full of lies. When Japan announces her claims under the name of the Imperial Headquarters, she cannot lie, because they are given with full acknowledgement of the Emperor. If any falsehood were given, the officials in charge will be in an awful trouble. The Emperor cannot lie." (This sentiment is very common among the Issei.)

Another Issei (a segregant due to go to Tule Lake):

"Japan is celebrating the victories. The Government lifted the rationing law on Sake. That shows that Japan won. America has been lying from the beginning of this war. Japan always admitted when she lost."

Nisei as a whole seem to believe those news given by the American communiques, and to discredit the Japanese news which they overhear from their parents. But it must be noted that they do not express their opinions on the war articulately at present.

At present there is at least one regular "hang out" for the Issei "arm chair generals" in every block to discuss the news carried in the little mimeographed papers (the papers printed by some unknown person secretly. The Radio Tokyo broadcasts in Japanese are printed verbatim.). Their discussions have become lively of late.

OCTOBER 21 -- (1)

War News Reports

The oversea broadcast enthusiasts^s took the summary report of the "Formosa Air Battle" much more soberly and calmly. It is supposed to have come from Radio Tokyo. It seems that these people believe the Philippine invasion. The news was flashed by the Japanese station first and Japan acknowledged the invasion. The news no doubt had a counteracting effect on the jubilant attitude of these people. The celebrating spirit of these nationalistic Issei has been waning with the increasing conviction of the American success at Leyte. The Issei as a whole are, however, expecting that Japan might successfully repulse the American attempts to enlarge her holdings in the Philippines. The summary given by Radio Tokyo, it was told, contained the following results: Sunk -- 11 aircraft carriers, 2 battleships, 3 cruisers, and 1 destroyer; damaged -- 8 aircraft carriers, 2 battleships, 4 cruisers, 14 other warships. These are generally believed by the Issei as true.

The anxiety for the closing of centers, too, has been waning. M. Okamoto contributed a series of articles to the Japanese section of the Poston Chronicle on this subject. He argued that he could not see a general lifting of the Army exclusion orders in the near future. It would be a long time before the Issei could be allowed to return to California by the Army. Therefore, the WRA could not close these centers before the war is over. He believed that these talks by the WRA officials are to accelerate relocation, which has not been successful and has not come up to the expectation of the WRA. The WRA would devise any method in order to induce these people to move out of the centers, he stated in the article.

Okamoto's argument is a reflection of general beliefs held

OCTOBER 21 -- (2)

by a majority of Issei, who believe they cannot relocate or who actually cannot relocate. They are regaining complacency based on wishful thinking. Although a majority of Nisei believe that the WRA would close these centers, but their opinion seem to have less weight in forming public opinion here than before. It must be remembered that most of the relocatable Nisei have gone out of Poston, and those remaining Nisei are depending on their parents for their future in much greater degree. That is to say, a greater dependency of Nisei at Poston at present upon their parents in planning their future has been noticeable for sometime.

See also Law & Order, October 20 & 19
(party celebrations for "great Japanese
naval victory")

War News
Re.

October 19

Later in the evening, almost every station on radio stopped its regular broadcast and reported that ~~an~~ American forces had invaded the Philippines. Most of the Issei, who had been jubilant with the "Japanese victories", were stunned. They took an attitude, "What is this now?" Of course, there were many who refused to believe the news as usual. And there was an usual contingent, which claimed that Japan had strategically drawn the American troops near to a trap. In general, the Issei were surprised of the sudden turn of news.

#####

War News
Reports

OCTOBER 17 -- (1)

The oversea broadcast enthusiasts now have more fantastic stories to tell. They reported that the Japanese Navy and air forces are pursuing and destroying two battleships, nine aircraft carriers, three cruisers, and fifty destroyers. The more ^{fantastic} the story is ~~fantastic~~, the more jubilant are the people.

War News
Recd

OCTOBER 16 -- (1)

War News
The oversea short-wave enthusiasts have had a "field day" since yesterday. They have been jubilant with Japanese "victories" off Formosa, which had supposedly ^{been reported} ~~come~~ over the short-wave radio. These people, who had been down cast and had had nothing to be jubilant about, have had something to get excited about for the first time in recent several months. They are talking about the news all over the camp; groups of two and three Issei are seen whispering among themselves, and it is too obvious that they are discussing the news. In some quarters, it was reported, people drank toast in celebration of the "victory". They have forgotten the ^{ir} worries of the recent days regarding the imminent closing of centers; at least on the surface, the subject has completely been forgotten since yesterday.

The content of the broadcast, as it was reported, was as follows:

The American Third Fleet have been near Formosa. Its air arm attacked Formosa for the last two days. The Japanese land based planes have counter-attacked fiercely. The result of this counter-attack has ~~sa~~ been phenomenal. The Japanese planes sunk at least thirty-six American warships, including seventeen aircraft carriers and two cruisers. Now the Combined Fleet of the Japanese Navy have been ordered to pursue the ^{le} ~~feeling~~ American Third Fleet. The Japanese Navy came out from the hide-out for a long awaited battle and is in pursuit of the disorganized American fleet.

September 18

#####

A conversation between two short-wave broadcast fans (Issei)
is herewith recorded:

A: "Is there anything today?"

SEPTEMBER 18 -- (7)

B: "There is nothing today. They said that reception was bad and they could not get anything. But I have heard some dema"

A. "Let me hear those dema (false, groundless rumors). I don't care if they are dema."

This is a reflection among the more rabid nationalistic Issei of their desire to hear something pleasant, even though false, regarding the Japanese war efforts. It is a result of their dire thirst for good news.

September 12

#####

War News
Report

A general impression gained from observation of the Issei is that they are expecting an ⁱⁿvasion of the Philippine Islands by the American forces in the near future. They are getting more used to new reverses, although they are still hoping that Japan might effectively make a new come back. With some of them, the hope is more fanatical; they are definitely certain that Japan would make a phenomenal counter attack~~y~~ against the advancing American forces, and the complete annihilation of the American forces at that time would end the war in favor of Japan.

Gloom, however, was noticeable among them in hearing the purportedly oversea broadcast of last night that about one thousand American planes raided Japan's mainland.

In this connection it cannot be overlooked that they are not contemptuous of America or of the American armed strength as they were in the past. Many of the Issei seem to be resigned to the idea of remaining in this country after the war, as the trend is remarkably noticeable in the comments in the vernacular newspapers. I seldom hear nowadays from them that they desire to establish their niche in the South Sea or some other place.

#####

August 26

#####

There is a paucity of "pleasant" oversea broadcasts nowadays.

The Issei seem to be irritated and disturbed. They ask each other whenever they meet, "Did you hear any good news?" ("I hanashi ga arimasu ka?)

#####

War News

AUGUST 24 -- (1)

French came to see me this morning and wanted to know how the people here are taking the bombings of Japan. He said that Duncan Mills was quite anxious to know about it. I replied that they are getting a little uneasy about it. They, however, regard the bombings somewhat in terms of the Tokyo bombing by Dolittle, and cannot see it as a forerunner of more intensive bombings.

AUGUST 23 -- (1)

The residents seem to be uneasy about the turn of the war. ^{in the Pacific}

They are asking one another such questions as:

"You think Japan will be all right?"

Do you think Japan will be able to check the advance of the American forces?"

"What do you think is happening to the army and the navy of Japan?"

To these questions and their likes/no one can give competent answers. They can say only to the extent, "I hope things will turn out better soon."

It is evidently seen that there is a marked increase of unrest and uneasiness as to the future of Japan. As the events will move against Japan in the Pacific, this tension will ^{undoubtedly} increase.

#####

August 19

This was a very quiet week. Very ~~little~~ few incidents occurred. Even the "oversea discussion groups" are ⁱⁿ conspicuous lately; they dissappear shortly after the participants ^{have} met after each supper. It is an indication that the recent oversea broadcasts are not favorable to them.

War
News
Review

#####

August 17

#####

War News

An Issei of the commoner type said that he ^{was} ~~is~~ expecting more reverses for Japan in the near future. He had believed that Japan was invincible, but realized now that it was not quite so. He further went on to say, "In the same proportion we Japanese in America would suffer. When Japan weakens, the Americans would treat ^{us} ~~them~~ in the worse manner here. (Evidently he meant that the Congress would demand to lower the standards of treatment of the evacuees in the relocation centers, for one thing. In another sense he also meant that the American public would not pay respect to the Japanese here as in the present days.) I am sure the WRA would reduce the food stuffs supplied to these centers. We would be forced to eat rotten things, but we would not have much say. America would not care what would happen to these Japanese. She has been treating us well so far, because there ^{is} ~~was~~ a chance of being defeated and ^{is} ~~was~~ afraid of retaliation. Now when she ~~is~~ sure of victory, she would not pay so much attention to us as Before."

"When Japan is completely defeated, we should expect the worst. They can do anything they want. We would not have the strong Japan any more to rely on; Japan can no longer protect us as before. The WRA, then, might close these centers and tell us to move out

AUGUST 17 -- (2)

of here without any assistance."

This reasoning is an usual one. It seems that this Issei has confused two fears together --- viz. the fear of the liquidation of the WRA and the fear of the defeat of Japan. This is the first time that I ^{have} come across this sort of argument.

#####

There seems to be no chief topic of conversation among the residents here. The Issei are not so interested in the war news as before. Even the imminent collapse of Germany is not an exciting news to them. I can observe no visible reactions to the situation in Europe.

Among the Nisei the draft question has lost its intensity. There is no observable agitation for evasion of the draft calls.

No project issue is attracting the attention of the residents. The agitation against Harper has subsided with the rumor that he would soon leave here for Tule Lake. A more common reaction to Harper's transfer is that he would meet more troubles in Tule Lake as its residents are tougher and ^{more} belligerent.

#####

16

An Issei (with an elementary school education and with an ordinary intelligence) told me thus:

Until recently I thought Japan could invade the United States. I thought Japan at least could attack Hawaii and take the possession of the islands. But I realize that I had not had enough military knowledge to see that was impossible for Japan. Now I am afraid that the United States would successfully invade the Philippines and take them away from Japan. At the early ^{stage} ~~game~~ of the war

War Memo
Paper

AUGUST 16 -- (4)

Japan was much more fortunate than we had expected. She conquered more territories than we had ever dreamt of. By this success I lost my perspective.

Japan will have a tough time from now on. She might lose the war. I hate to see it, but it can't be helped. When she loses, it will be the end for us too!

There are a lot of people who still think Japan is invincible. They cannot understand why Japan does not take the offensive. I feel sorry for these people. I know at least two individuals who did not eat well for two or three days when they ^{had} heard that Saipan ~~had~~ fallen. I wonder what would happen to these people when Japan is acutally defeated. We might have many insane people result^{ing} from despondency.

I was planning to return to Japan in 1941. But I don't know what I will do after the war. I certainly know that I am too old to begin all over in this country. I have enough savings; so I and my wife might go back to Japan to spend the rest of our lives. My children are old enough to know what they should do. If they decide to remain in this country, it's all right with me.

What I am really hoping for is for the chance that the United States gets weary of the war and decides to quit. The American people might get tired of the war after Germany is knocked out. That is our only hope.

AUGUST 3** (1)

Some more intelligent Issei surreptitiously told me that he expected that the American forces would soon invade Formosa before they would make any attempt toward the Philippines.

Another Issei of the same group believed that Japan would sue for peace when the inner defense of Japan grumbled. He said that the common belief that Japan would fight to the last man was *just* a myth.

War memo

JAPAN would sue

In spite of these polar expressions, the interpretations for the fall of Saipan most commonly advanced by the Issei could be put into the following three categories:

1. It was inevitable. Japan could not defend thousands of islands in the Pacific equally effective. This group emphasized the fact that America only occupied a small number of islands in the Pacific, while Japan occupied a much larger number of islands yet.

2. It is a strategic retreat. It is a means to lure the American navy into a trap soon.

3. The report is false. It is a propaganda of the United States.

JULY 29 -- (2)

Wairum
A rumor current until a few days ago was that the Japanese aircrafts sank at least seventy-five of ^{the} ₁ one hundred invading transports at Guam. Now the fact that the American forces had successfully invaded the island ^{was} established through the American newspapers (although many of them do not believe this news) the rumor lost its interest.

There are ~~another~~ rumors. One stated that Dr. West is returning from Gila to take the ^{place} of Dr. Pressman, who would be transferred to some other center because of the evacuees' resentment. Another rumor stated that the Administration is getting ready to transfer Charles Harper, chief of Internal Security, elsewhere. This is the reason, the rumor has it, that the Administration is stalling in giving an answer to the recommendation of the Labor Relations Board in the case of the four policemen. In this connection, a story is currently told that Harper was transferred from Gila last year because of his quick temper.

July 26

The oversea broadcast "bugs" reported that American forces which attempted an invasion of Tinian ~~was~~^{were} repulsed with heavy losses by the Japanese garrison. To them this seems to be a consolatory news among other adverse news items.

#####

July 23

The groups, which congregate at one place or another after suppers, to discuss the war news and the short-wave news have disappeared mostly after the fall of Saipan. These discussion assemblages of Issei ^{had} flourished up to the time of the fall. To these assemblages some Issei who by pre-arrangement were instructed to get in touch with the source of the short-wave news delivered the copies, which purportedly contained the oversea news broadcast for the day. Now because of the reverses the copies brought by these Issei go-betweens are not popular at present.

#####

JULY 20 -- (1)

The news of the fall of Saipan and the change of the Japanese cabinet shocked a greater proportion of the Issei here. They are very gloomy. They are looking forward to ~~some~~ more pleasant news via short wave broadcasts.

Some of the more intelligent Issei surreptitiously commented that they had been afraid of this to happen for a long time. They could see from the news in the past that Japan lacked in the number of ships and airplanes. They believed worse news were yet to come for them.

Some other Issei took it a little more optimistically. They said that American advances in the Pacific from now on would be very difficult. Saipan alone was not a fatal loss to Japan. As to the change of the cabinet, they, however, admitted that it was Japan's admission of defeat at Saipan and ^{of} other recent reverses. But, they said, as customarily with the Japanese politics Tojo personally took the blame to himself and resigned because "he was not worthy of the confidence vested in him by the Emperor." They ^sreasoned that the new cabinet would be more vigorous and aggressive. They still have a great deal of hope for Japan in the future. Part of this group believed that the mainland of Japan would never be invaded, while another portion believed that Japan would make its last ditch stand in China.

There are more extreme Issei who are refusing to believe that Saipan had fallen. They also fail to see any significance in the cabinet change.

There are ~~hardly~~ not enough comments among the Nisei. With some the reaction to the news was about same as that of the American newspapers ---- that is, Japan is doomed, and her days are numbered. Other Nisei are avoiding any comment upon the matter, probably in-

JULY 21 -- (2)

tentionally.

#####

~~One~~ more conservative Issei commented, "I believe the defense set-up of those Pacific islands is outdated. I don't think Japan had time to do much about strengthening the defense after the war had begun. It is easily seen that Japan could not defend American onslaught with highly mechanized modern weapons by her outdated defense preparations."

Another Issei commented, "That's the trouble with these islands. They don't have the maneuverability like aircraft carriers. But as the supply line of the U. S. Navy lengthens, American strength would be decreased. The distance is a formidable enemy."

Another Issei said, "This is ^apropaganda to lull the enemy (U. S.)"

#####

One Kibei was worried about the turn of the war tide, but presently he rationalized, "You can't say Japan is weak yet. She's got plenty left yet. Look at Rabaul or New Guinea. Americans were pounding those ^aplaces for more than a year. Still they can't take them."

#####

JULY 20 -- (1)

Although a few rabid ones refuse to believe it, most of the Issei believe that Saipan fell into the American hand. They have been speculating that Japan would resist the American invasion basing their arguments on the oversea broadcasts, but now they are a disappointed lot.

JUNE 27 -- (5)

A large number of Issei have been jubilant for about a week about alleged news from Radio Tokyo. In the early stage the rumors were conservative. I heard the rumors which might be summarized as follows in general substance:

"American forces failed to penetrate on Saipan after they had failed to land ~~force~~."

war news report
"One battleship, 35,000 tons, and several other warships were sunk off the Marianas."

naval
"A huge ¹ battle is going on and Japan has an upper hand."

Lately the rumors became more fantastic.

"A new Japanese forces landed behind the American forces which had succeeded in landing at their third attempt. Now the American forces are sandwiched between two Japanese forces and are being annihilated."

"Twelve battleships, nineteen aircraft carriers, and forty-three cruisers and destroyers were sunk by Japanese navy in the water between the Marianas and the Philippines."

These rumors have been spread with much individual colorings of the "town ^r criers". These people seemed to have taken a sudden lease on life with these news of "victories". Many of them have been turning into arm chair strategists, discussing these battles with their own conception of how they would have been fought. And these "experts" are finding ready audiences at various places in camp. (These news, reported by these Issei, were verified by the articles printed in American newspapers as those broadcast by Japan two or three days after they had been circulated in camp.)

April 30

#####

As to war news there is a confusing lull. About two weeks ago an alleged short-wave news ^{reported} that a 4,500 ton battleship and a small aircraft carrier and a few other warships of the United States Navy had been captured by Japan. ^{It} caused a considerable amount of excitement, ~~but~~ quite many of those who had heard this are taking it with a grain of salt.

#####

One Issei reported that many news ^{credited} ~~reported~~ as from overseas broadcasts in ~~his~~ letters from his Tule Lake friends ^{coincide} ~~check~~ in general substance with those heard ~~here~~ from his friends ^{here}.

#####

War News
Reports



April 21

#####

It is noticeable that the interest of people (especially the Issei) in war news have somewhat revived with the Japanese pene^tration into India. They have been conjecturing how far the Japanese army would advance into the Indiaⁿ territory this

War news
April 21
1942

APRIL 21 -- (2)

season before the monsoon. They have placed a considerable hope in the indication reported frequently that the conditions in ~~India~~ are not orderly and peaceful and that a revolution might be imminent. They hope that such a revolution be initiated by the people of India soon; and they do not believe the Japanese army will ~~be~~ penetrate very far into the country. Some of them, however, expressed that India will not be ripe for ~~a~~ rebellion against the British unless the Japanese have succeeded in invading as far as Calcutta.

The people are still minimizing the American raids into the Carolines. They believe that the loss of the United States in ships and planes are much more than what they ^{have} ~~are~~ gained in damages inflicted on these islands.

April 9

War News

Some people are talking about the Japanese advances toward India, but there is not a sufficient enthusiasm comparable of that during the past years.

APRIL 8 -- (1)

April 8

There has been a current rumor that Joseph Grew, the former Ambassador to Japan, flew to Shinkyo to discuss preparatory negotiations for peace between the United States and Japan.

I met a man yesterday who said, "I started that rumor for a fun of it. I said originally that Grew flew to the South Seas to meet the Japanese envoy, but ~~some~~^{where} were somebody changed the story."

#####

There is another persistent rumor -- undoubtedly Poston made-- that ~~the~~ Great Britain was ready to fold up.

#####

War
News
Report
16-17-18-19-20-21-22-23-24-25-26-27-28-29-30-31-32-33-34-35-36-37-38-39-40-41-42-43-44-45-46-47-48-49-50-51-52-53-54-55-56-57-58-59-60-61-62-63-64-65-66-67-68-69-70-71-72-73-74-75-76-77-78-79-80-81-82-83-84-85-86-87-88-89-90-91-92-93-94-95-96-97-98-99-100-101-102-103-104-105-106-107-108-109-110-111-112-113-114-115-116-117-118-119-120-121-122-123-124-125-126-127-128-129-130-131-132-133-134-135-136-137-138-139-140-141-142-143-144-145-146-147-148-149-150-151-152-153-154-155-156-157-158-159-160-161-162-163-164-165-166-167-168-169-170-171-172-173-174-175-176-177-178-179-180-181-182-183-184-185-186-187-188-189-190-191-192-193-194-195-196-197-198-199-200-201-202-203-204-205-206-207-208-209-210-211-212-213-214-215-216-217-218-219-220-221-222-223-224-225-226-227-228-229-230-231-232-233-234-235-236-237-238-239-240-241-242-243-244-245-246-247-248-249-250-251-252-253-254-255-256-257-258-259-260-261-262-263-264-265-266-267-268-269-270-271-272-273-274-275-276-277-278-279-280-281-282-283-284-285-286-287-288-289-290-291-292-293-294-295-296-297-298-299-300-301-302-303-304-305-306-307-308-309-310-311-312-313-314-315-316-317-318-319-320-321-322-323-324-325-326-327-328-329-330-331-332-333-334-335-336-337-338-339-340-341-342-343-344-345-346-347-348-349-350-351-352-353-354-355-356-357-358-359-360-361-362-363-364-365-366-367-368-369-370-371-372-373-374-375-376-377-378-379-380-381-382-383-384-385-386-387-388-389-390-391-392-393-394-395-396-397-398-399-400-401-402-403-404-405-406-407-408-409-410-411-412-413-414-415-416-417-418-419-420-421-422-423-424-425-426-427-428-429-430-431-432-433-434-435-436-437-438-439-440-441-442-443-444-445-446-447-448-449-450-451-452-453-454-455-456-457-458-459-460-461-462-463-464-465-466-467-468-469-470-471-472-473-474-475-476-477-478-479-480-481-482-483-484-485-486-487-488-489-490-491-492-493-494-495-496-497-498-499-500-501-502-503-504-505-506-507-508-509-510-511-512-513-514-515-516-517-518-519-520-521-522-523-524-525-526-527-528-529-530-531-532-533-534-535-536-537-538-539-540-541-542-543-544-545-546-547-548-549-550-551-552-553-554-555-556-557-558-559-560-561-562-563-564-565-566-567-568-569-570-571-572-573-574-575-576-577-578-579-580-581-582-583-584-585-586-587-588-589-590-591-592-593-594-595-596-597-598-599-600-601-602-603-604-605-606-607-608-609-610-611-612-613-614-615-616-617-618-619-620-621-622-623-624-625-626-627-628-629-630-631-632-633-634-635-636-637-638-639-640-641-642-643-644-645-646-647-648-649-650-651-652-653-654-655-656-657-658-659-660-661-662-663-664-665-666-667-668-669-670-671-672-673-674-675-676-677-678-679-680-681-682-683-684-685-686-687-688-689-690-691-692-693-694-695-696-697-698-699-700-701-702-703-704-705-706-707-708-709-710-711-712-713-714-715-716-717-718-719-720-721-722-723-724-725-726-727-728-729-730-731-732-733-734-735-736-737-738-739-740-741-742-743-744-745-746-747-748-749-750-751-752-753-754-755-756-757-758-759-760-761-762-763-764-765-766-767-768-769-770-771-772-773-774-775-776-777-778-779-780-781-782-783-784-785-786-787-788-789-790-791-792-793-794-795-796-797-798-799-800-801-802-803-804-805-806-807-808-809-810-811-812-813-814-815-816-817-818-819-820-821-822-823-824-825-826-827-828-829-830-831-832-833-834-835-836-837-838-839-840-841-842-843-844-845-846-847-848-849-850-851-852-853-854-855-856-857-858-859-860-861-862-863-864-865-866-867-868-869-870-871-872-873-874-875-876-877-878-879-880-881-882-883-884-885-886-887-888-889-890-891-892-893-894-895-896-897-898-899-900-901-902-903-904-905-906-907-908-909-910-911-912-913-914-915-916-917-918-919-920-921-922-923-924-925-926-927-928-929-930-931-932-933-934-935-936-937-938-939-940-941-942-943-944-945-946-947-948-949-950-951-952-953-954-955-956-957-958-959-960-961-962-963-964-965-966-967-968-969-970-971-972-973-974-975-976-977-978-979-980-981-982-983-984-985-986-987-988-989-990-991-992-993-994-995-996-997-998-999-1000-1001-1002-1003-1004-1005-1006-1007-1008-1009-1010-1011-1012-1013-1014-1015-1016-1017-1018-1019-1020-1021-1022-1023-1024-1025-1026-1027-1028-1029-1030-1031-1032-1033-1034-1035-1036-1037-1038-1039-1040-1041-1042-1043-1044-1045-1046-1047-1048-1049-1050-1051-1052-1053-1054-1055-1056-1057-1058-1059-1060-1061-1062-1063-1064-1065-1066-1067-1068-1069-1070-1071-1072-1073-1074-1075-1076-1077-1078-1079-1080-1081-1082-1083-1084-1085-1086-1087-1088-1089-1090-1091-1092-1093-1094-1095-1096-1097-1098-1099-1100-1101-1102-1103-1104-1105-1106-1107-1108-1109-1110-1111-1112-1113-1114-1115-1116-1117-1118-1119-1120-1121-1122-1123-1124-1125-1126-1127-1128-1129-1130-1131-1132-1133-1134-1135-1136-1137-1138-1139-1140-1141-1142-1143-1144-1145-1146-1147-1148-1149-1150-1151-1152-1153-1154-1155-1156-1157-1158-1159-1160-1161-1162-1163-1164-1165-1166-1167-1168-1169-1170-1171-1172-1173-1174-1175-1176-1177-1178-1179-1180-1181-1182-1183-1184-1185-1186-1187-1188-1189-1190-1191-1192-1193-1194-1195-1196-1197-1198-1199-1200-1201-1202-1203-1204-1205-1206-1207-1208-1209-1210-1211-1212-1213-1214-1215-1216-1217-1218-1219-1220-1221-1222-1223-1224-1225-1226-1227-1228-1229-1230-1231-1232-1233-1234-1235-1236-1237-1238-1239-1240-1241-1242-1243-1244-1245-1246-1247-1248-1249-1250-1251-1252-1253-1254-1255-1256-1257-1258-1259-1260-1261-1262-1263-1264-1265-1266-1267-1268-1269-1270-1271-1272-1273-1274-1275-1276-1277-1278-1279-1280-1281-1282-1283-1284-1285-1286-1287-1288-1289-1290-1291-1292-1293-1294-1295-1296-1297-1298-1299-1300-1301-1302-1303-1304-1305-1306-1307-1308-1309-1310-1311-1312-1313-1314-1315-1316-1317-1318-1319-1320-1321-1322-1323-1324-1325-1326-1327-1328-1329-1330-1331-1332-1333-1334-1335-1336-1337-1338-1339-1340-1341-1342-1343-1344-1345-1346-1347-1348-1349-1350-1351-1352-1353-1354-1355-1356-1357-1358-1359-1360-1361-1362-1363-1364-1365-1366-1367-1368-1369-1370-1371-1372-1373-1374-1375-1376-1377-1378-1379-1380-1381-1382-1383-1384-1385-1386-1387-1388-1389-1390-1391-1392-1393-1394-1395-1396-1397-1398-1399-1400-1401-1402-1403-1404-1405-1406-1407-1408-1409-1410-1411-1412-1413-1414-1415-1416-1417-1418-1419-1420-1421-1422-1423-1424-1425-1426-1427-1428-1429-1430-1431-1432-1433-1434-1435-1436-1437-1438-1439-1440-1441-1442-1443-1444-1445-1446-1447-1448-1449-1450-1451-1452-1453-1454-1455-1456-1457-1458-1459-1460-1461-1462-1463-1464-1465-1466-1467-1468-1469-1470-1471-1472-1473-1474-1475-1476-1477-1478-1479-1480-1481-1482-1483-1484-1485-1486-1487-1488-1489-1490-1491-1492-1493-1494-1495-1496-1497-1498-1499-1500-1501-1502-1503-1504-1505-1506-1507-1508-1509-1510-1511-1512-1513-1514-1515-1516-1517-1518-1519-1520-1521-1522-1523-1524-1525-1526-1527-1528-1529-1530-1531-1532-1533-1534-1535-1536-1537-1538-1539-1540-1541-1542-1543-1544-1545-1546-1547-1548-1549-1550-1551-1552-1553-1554-1555-1556-1557-1558-1559-1560-1561-1562-1563-1564-1565-1566-1567-1568-1569-1570-1571-1572-1573-1574-1575-1576-1577-1578-1579-1580-1581-1582-1583-1584-1585-1586-1587-1588-1589-1590-1591-1592-1593-1594-1595-1596-1597-1598-1599-1600-1601-1602-1603-1604-1605-1606-1607-1608-1609-1610-1611-1612-1613-1614-1615-1616-1617-1618-1619-1620-1621-1622-1623-1624-1625-1626-1627-1628-1629-1630-1631-1632-1633-1634-1635-1636-1637-1638-1639-1640-1641-1642-1643-1644-1645-1646-1647-1648-1649-1650-1651-1652-1653-1654-1655-1656-1657-1658-1659-1660-1661-1662-1663-1664-1665-1666-1667-1668-1669-1670-1671-1672-1673-1674-1675-1676-1677-1678-1679-1680-1681-1682-1683-1684-1685-1686-1687-1688-1689-1690-1691-1692-1693-1694-1695-1696-1697-1698-1699-1700-1701-1702-1703-1704-1705-1706-1707-1708-1709-1710-1711-1712-1713-1714-1715-1716-1717-1718-1719-1720-1721-1722-1723-1724-1725-1726-1727-1728-1729-1730-1731-1732-1733-1734-1735-1736-1737-1738-1739-1740-1741-1742-1743-1744-1745-1746-1747-1748-1749-1750-1751-1752-1753-1754-1755-1756-1757-1758-1759-1760-1761-1762-1763-1764-1765-1766-1767-1768-1769-1770-1771-1772-1773-1774-1775-1776-1777-1778-1779-1780-1781-1782-1783-1784-1785-1786-1787-1788-1789-1790-1791-1792-1793-1794-1795-1796-1797-1798-1799-1800-1801-1802-1803-1804-1805-1806-1807-1808-1809-1810-1811-1812-1813-1814-1815-1816-1817-1818-1819-1820-1821-1822-1823-1824-1825-1826-1827-1828-1829-1830-1831-1832-1833-1834-1835-1836-1837-1838-1839-1840-1841-1842-1843-1844-1845-1846-1847-1848-1849-1850-1851-1852-1853-1854-1855-1856-1857-1858-1859-1860-1861-1862-1863-1864-1865-1866-1867-1868-1869-1870-1871-1872-1873-1874-1875-1876-1877-1878-1879-1880-1881-1882-1883-1884-1885-1886-1887-1888-1889-1890-1891-1892-1893-1894-1895-1896-1897-1898-1899-1900-1901-1902-1903-1904-1905-1906-1907-1908-1909-1910-1911-1912-1913-1914-1915-1916-1917-1918-1919-1920-1921-1922-1923-1924-1925-1926-1927-1928-1929-1930-1931-1932-1933-1934-1935-1936-1937-1938-1939-1940-1941-1942-1943-1944-1945-1946-1947-1948-1949-1950-1951-1952-1953-1954-1955-1956-1957-1958-1959-1960-1961-1962-1963-1964-1965-1966-1967-1968-1969-1970-1971-1972-1973-1974-1975-1976-1977-1978-1979-1980-1981-1982-1983-1984-1985-1986-1987-1988-1989-1990-1991-1992-1993-1994-1995-1996-1997-1998-1999-2000-2001-2002-2003-2004-2005-2006-2007-2008-2009-2010-2011-2012-2013-2014-2015-2016-2017-2018-2019-2020-2021-2022-2023-2024-2025-2026-2027-2028-2029-2030-2031-2032-2033-2034-2035-2036-2037-2038-2039-2040-2041-2042-2043-2044-2045-2046-2047-2048-2049-2050-2051-2052-2053-2054-2055-2056-2057-2058-2059-2060-2061-2062-2063-2064-2065-2066-2067-2068-2069-2070-2071-2072-2073-2074-2075-2076-2077-2078-2079-2080-2081-2082-2083-2084-2085-2086-2087-2088-2089-2090-2091-2092-2093-2094-2095-2096-2097-2098-2099-2100-2101-2102-2103-2104-2105-2106-2107-2108-2109-2110-2111-2112-2113-2114-2115-2116-2117-2118-2119-2120-2121-2122-2123-2124-2125-2126-2127-2128-2129-2130-2131-2132-2133-2134-2135-2136-2137-2138-2139-2140-2141-2142-2143-2144-2145-2146-2147-2148-2149-2150-2151-2152-2153-2154-2155-2156-2157-2158-2159-2160-2161-2162-2163-2164-2165-2166-2167-2168-2169-2170-2171-2172-2173-2174-2175-2176-2177-2178-2179-2180-2181-2182-2183-2184-2185-2186-2187-2188-2189-2190-2191-2192-2193-2194-2195-2196-2197-2198-2199-2200-2201-2202-2203-2204-2205-2206-2207-2208-2209-2210-2211-2212-2213-2214-2215-2216-2217-2218-2219-2220-2221-2222-2223-2224-2225-2226-2227-2228-2229-2230-2231-2232-2233-2234-2235-2236-2237-2238-2239-2240-2241-2242-2243-2244-2245-2246-2247-2248-2249-2250-2251-2252-2253-2254-2255-2256-2257-2258-2259-2260-2261-2262-2263-2264-2265-2266-2267-2268-2269-2270-2271-2272-2273-2274-2275-2276-2277-2278-2279-2280-2281-2282-2283-2284-2285-2286-2287-2288-2289-2290-2291-2292-2293-2294-2295-2296-2297-2298-2299-2300-2301-2302-2303-2304-2305-2306-2307-2308-2309-2310-2311-2312-2313-2314-2315-2316-2317-2318-2319-2320-2321-2322-2323-2324-2325-2326-2327-2328-2329-2330-2331-2332-2333-2334-2335-2336-2337-2338-2339-2340-2341-2342-2343-2344-2345-2346-2347-2348-2349-2350-2351-2352-2353-2354-2355-2356-2357-2358-2359-2360-2361-2362-2363-2364-2365-2366-2367-2368-2369-2370-2371-2372-2373-2374-2375-2376-2377-2378-2379-2380-2381-2382-2383-2384-2385-2386-2387-2388-2389-2390-2391-2392-2393-2394-2395-2396-2397-2398-2399-2400-2401-2402-2403-2404-2405-2406-2407-2408-2409-2410-2411-2412-2413-2414-2415-2416-2417-2418-2419-2420-2421-2422-2423-2424-2425-2426-2427-2428-2429-2430-2431-2432-2433-2434-2435-2436-2437-2438-2439-2440-2441-2442-2443-2444-2445-2446-2447-2448-2449-2450-2451-2452-2453-2454-2455-2456-2457-2458-2459-2460-2461-2462-2463-2464-2465-2466-2467-2468-2469-2470-2471-2472-2473-2474-2475-2476-2477-2478-2479-2480-2481-2482-2483-2484-2485-2486-2487-2488-2489-2490-2491-2492-2493-2494-2495-2496-2497-2498-2499-2500-2501-2502-2503-2504-2505-2506-2507-2508-2509-2510-2511-2512-2513-2514-2515-2516-2517-2518-2519-2520-2521-2522-2523-2524-2525-2526-2527-2528-2529-2530-2531-2532-2533-2534-2535-2536-2537-2538-2539-2540-2541-2542-2543-2544-2545-2546-2547-2548-2549-2550-2551-2552-2553-2554-2555-2556-2557-2558-2559-2560-2561-2562-2563-2564-2565-2566-2567-2568-2569-2570-2571-2572-2573-2574-2575-2576-2577-2578-2579-2580-2581-2582-2583-2584-2585-2586-2587-2588-2589-2590-2591-2592-2593-2594-2595-2596-2597-2598-2599-2600-2601-2602-2603-2604-2605-2606-2607-2608-2609-2610-2611-2612-2613-2614-2615-2616-2617-2618-2619-2620-2621-2622-2623-2624-2625-2626-262

#####

The following notice was sent out to the blocks:

Project Memorandum No. 6

War
mem
Pison to

MARCH 31 -- (2)

March 30, 1944

MEMO TO: ALL RESIDENTS OF POSTON

SUBJECT: Change in Time

In conformance with the change in time adopted by the State of Arizona, Poston will go on Mountain War Time, effective midnight Saturday, April 1, 1944.

This means that clocks should be moved ahead one hour as of the effective date.

Duncan Mills
Project Director

#####

March 26

War
news
Reports

There are some talks among the residents about the Japanese invasion into India. Some reported that the Japanese army had advanced some distance beyond Imphal. (The American news have the Japanese army some thirty miles before it could reach the city.)

Some residents, in addition, were citing an article in the Los Angeles Examiner of today in which it was stated that Senator Chandler had said that the American victories in the Pacific could not be regarded very significant on the face of the Japanese strength and threat against India. They took much stock in Chandler's statement that if Japan had been crushed as the American government reported repeatedly, she would not have enough

MARCH 26 -- (2)

strength left to undertake such a tremendous offensive against
India. (I did not read this article.)